

**IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE**

In re:

GRITSTONE BIO, INC.,¹

Debtor.

Chapter 11

Case No. 24-12305 (KBO)

Re: Docket Nos. 9, 39

**CERTIFICATION OF COUNSEL REGARDING FINAL ORDER
(I) APPROVING PROPOSED FORM OF ADEQUATE ASSURANCE OF PAYMENT
TO UTILITY COMPANIES; (II) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING
OBJECTIONS BY UTILITY COMPANIES; (III) PROHIBITING UTILITY
COMPANIES FROM ALTERING, REFUSING, OR DISCONTINUING SERVICE; AND
(IV) GRANTING RELATED RELIEF**

The undersigned proposed counsel for the above-captioned debtor and debtor in possession (the “Debtor”) hereby certifies that:

1. On October 10, 2024, the above-captioned debtor and debtor in possession (the “Debtor”) filed the *Motion for Entry of Interim and Final Orders (I) Approving Proposed Form of Adequate Assurance of Payment to Utility Companies; (II) Establishing Procedures for Resolving Objections by Utility Companies; (III) Prohibiting Utility Companies from Altering, Refusing, or Discontinuing Service; and (IV) Granting Related Relief* (the “Motion”) [Docket No. 9].

2. On October 16, 2024, the Court held an interim hearing on the Motion.

3. On October 16, 2024, the Court entered the *Interim Order (I) Approving Proposed Form of Adequate Assurance of Payment to Utility Companies; (II) Establishing Procedures for Resolving Objections by Utility Companies; (III) Prohibiting Utility Companies*

¹ The Debtor’s mailing address is 4698 Willow Road, Pleasanton, CA 94588, and the last four digits of the Debtor’s federal tax identification number is 9534.



from Altering, Refusing, or Discontinuing Service; and (IV) Granting Related Relief (the “Interim Order”) [Docket No. 39].

4. On October 17, 2024, the Debtor filed the *Notice of Entry of Interim Order and Final Hearing Regarding Debtor’s Motion for Entry of Interim and Final Orders (I) Approving Proposed Form of Adequate Assurance of Payment to Utility Companies; (II) Establishing Procedures for Resolving Objections by Utility Companies; (III) Prohibiting Utility Companies from Altering, Refusing, or Discontinuing Service; and (IV) Granting Related Relief* [Docket No. 47] that set the deadline to respond with respect to final relief sought in the Motion as November 6, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time (the “Objection Deadline”).

5. The Debtor received informal responses from Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) and the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors (the “Committee”). No party filed an answer, objection, or other responsive pleading to the Motion on the Court’s docket.

6. Attached hereto as **Exhibit A** is a proposed final order (the “Proposed Final Order”), which incorporates comments from PG&E and the Committee. PG&E and the Committee do not object to entry of the Proposed Final Order.

7. A blacklined copy of the Proposed Final Order is attached hereto as **Exhibit B**, showing changes made against the Interim Order.

8. Accordingly, the Debtor respectfully requests entry of the Proposed Final Order attached hereto as **Exhibit A** at the Court’s earliest convenience.

Dated: November 11, 2024

PACHULSKI STANG ZIEHL & JONES LLP

/s/ James E. O'Neill

Debra I. Grassgreen, (admitted *pro hac vice*)

John W. Lucas, (admitted *pro hac vice*)

Malhar S. Pagay, (admitted *pro hac vice*)

James E. O'Neill (DE Bar No. 4042)

919 North Market Street, 17th Floor

P.O. Box 8750

Wilmington, Delaware 19899-8705

Tel: 302-652-4100

Fax: 302-652-4400

Email: dgrassgreen@pszjlaw.com

jlucas@pszjlaw.com

mpagay@pszjlaw.com

joneill@pszjlaw.com

Proposed Counsel to the

Debtor and Debtor in Possession

Exhibit A

**IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE**

In re:

GRITSTONE BIO, INC.,¹

Debtor.

Chapter 11

Case No. 24-12305 (KBO)

Related Docket Nos. 9 & 39

**FINAL ORDER (I) APPROVING PROPOSED FORM OF ADEQUATE
ASSURANCE OF PAYMENT TO UTILITY COMPANIES; (II) ESTABLISHING
PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING OBJECTIONS BY UTILITY COMPANIES;
(III) PROHIBITING UTILITY COMPANIES FROM ALTERING, REFUSING,
OR DISCONTINUING SERVICE; AND (IV) GRANTING RELATED RELIEF**

Upon consideration of the motion (the “Motion”)² of the above-captioned debtor and debtor in possession (the “Debtor”) for the entry of a final order (this “Final Order”), pursuant to sections 105(a) and 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, and Bankruptcy Rules 6003 and 6004: (i) approving the Debtor’s proposed form of adequate assurance of payment to the Utility Companies; (ii) establishing procedures for resolving objections by Utility Companies relating to the adequacy of the proposed adequate assurance provided by the Debtor; (iii) prohibiting the Utility Companies from altering, refusing, or discontinuing service to, or discriminating against, the Debtor on the basis of the commencement of the Chapter 11 Case or any outstanding prepetition debts; and (iv) granting related relief, all as more fully set forth in the Motion; and upon consideration of the First Day Declaration; and this Court having jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334 and the *Amended Standing Order of Reference from the United States District Court for the District of Delaware*, dated February 29, 2012; and this Court having found that this is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2), and this Court having

¹ The Debtor’s mailing address is 4698 Willow Road, Pleasanton, CA 94588, and the last four digits of the Debtor’s federal tax identification number is 9534.

² A capitalized term used but not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to it in the Motion.

providers are deemed to have received adequate assurance of payment in accordance with section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code.

5. The following Adequate Assurance Procedures are hereby approved:
 - a. The Debtor will serve a copy of the Final Order on the Utility Companies on the Utility Services List within three (3) calendar days after entry of the Final Order.
 - b. The Debtor will deposit the Utility Deposit, in the aggregate amount of \$7,375.00, in the Utility Deposit Account within twenty (20) calendar days after the Petition Date.
 - c. The portion of the Utility Deposit attributable to each Utility Company will be returned to the Debtor on the earlier of: (i) reconciliation and payment by the Debtor of the Utility Company's final invoice in accordance with applicable non-bankruptcy law following the Debtor's termination of Utility Services from such Utility Company; and (ii) the earlier of: (a) the effective date of any chapter 11 plan confirmed in the Chapter 11 Case; and (b) the closure of the Chapter 11 Case; provided that there are no outstanding disputes related to postpetition payments due to the affected Utility Companies.
 - d. Any Utility Company desiring additional assurances of payment in the form of deposits, prepayments, or otherwise must serve a request for additional assurance (an "Additional Assurance Request") on the following parties: (i) proposed counsel to the Debtor, Pachulski Stang Ziehl & Jones LLP, 919 North Market Street 17th Floor, P.O. Box 8705, Wilmington, DE 19899-8705 (Courier 19801), Attn: John W. Lucas (jlucas@pszjlaw.com), James E. O'Neill (joneill@pszjlaw.com), and Brooke E. Wilson (bwilson@pszjlaw.com); (ii) the Office of The United States Trustee, 844 King Street Suite 2207, Lockbox 35, Wilmington, DE 19801; (iii) counsel to the Prepetition Secured Lenders; and (iv) the proposed counsel for the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors (the "Creditors' Committee") (a) ArentFox Schiff LLP, 1301 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 42, New York, New York 10019, Attn.: Andrew I. Silfen, Beth M. Brownstein, James E. Britton, and Patrick Feeney; (b) Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP, 1313 N. Market Street, 6th Floor, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn.: Christopher M. Samis, Aaron H. Stulman, Katelin A. Morales and Ethan H. Sulik..
 - e. The Additional Assurance Request must: (i) be made in writing; (ii) set forth the location(s) for which Utility Services are provided, the account number(s) for those location(s), and the outstanding balance for each account; (iii) explain why the Utility Company believes the Utility Deposit is not adequate assurance of payment; and (iv) certify that the Utility

Company does not already hold a deposit equal to or greater than two weeks of Utility Services provided by such Utility Company.

- f. An Additional Assurance Request may be made at any time. If a Utility Company does not serve an Additional Assurance Request, the Utility Company will be forbidden from discontinuing, altering, or refusing Utility Services to, or discriminating against, the Debtor on account of any unpaid prepetition charges or requiring additional assurance of payment other than the Proposed Adequate Assurance.
- g. Upon the Debtor's receipt of an Additional Assurance Request, the Debtor will negotiate with the Utility Company to resolve the Utility Company's Additional Assurance Request in consultation with the Committee.
- h. The Debtor may, without further order of the Court but in consultation with the Committee, resolve any Additional Assurance Request by mutual agreement with a Utility Company and, the Debtor may, in connection with any such agreement, provide a Utility Company with additional adequate assurance of payment, including cash deposits, prepayments, and other forms of security if the Debtor believes such additional assurance is reasonable.
- i. If the Debtor and the Utility Company are not able to reach an alternative resolution within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the Additional Assurance Request, the Debtor will request a hearing before the Court at the next regularly scheduled omnibus hearing to determine the adequacy of assurance of payment with respect to the particular Utility Company (the "Determination Hearing") pursuant to section 366(c)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, unless the Debtor and the Utility Company agree in writing to extend the period.
- j. Pending resolution of the Additional Assurance Request and Determination Hearing, the Utility Company making the Additional Assurance Request will be prohibited from altering, refusing, or discontinuing Utility Services to the Debtor on account of unpaid charges for prepetition services or on account of any objections to the Proposed Adequate Assurance.
- k. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Debtor shall provide Pacific Gas and Electric Company ("PG&E") with a deposit of \$26,000.00 to be held by PG&E as an Adequate Assurance Deposit.

6. All utility providers that have received notice, and for whose benefit Adequate Assurance Deposits are being made, are prohibited from requiring additional adequate assurance of payment other than pursuant to the Adequate Assurance Procedures.

7. The inclusion of any entity in, as well as any omission of any entity from, the Utility Services List shall not be deemed an admission by the Debtor that such entity is, or is not, a utility within the meaning of section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the Debtor reserves all rights and defenses with respect thereto.

8. The Debtor is authorized to amend the Utility Services List to the extent the Debtor terminates the services of any Utility Company or identify additional Utility Companies, *provided, however,* that the Debtor shall provide notice of any such addition or removal to the Creditors' Committee. This Final Order shall apply to any Utility Company that is added to the Utility Services List upon such Utility Company being added to the Utility Services List and being served with this Final Order. The Debtor shall serve a copy of this Final Order upon any Utility Company added to the Utility Services List.

9. The Debtor shall increase the amount of the Utility Deposit if an additional Utility Company is added to the Utility Services List by an amount equal to two (2) weeks of Utility Services provided by such additional Utility Company, calculated using the historical average for such payments during the twelve (12) months prior to the Petition Date; *provided, however,* that the Debtor shall give notice to the Committee of such increase.

10. The Debtor may terminate the services of any Utility Company and amend the Utility Services List to reflect such termination. The Debtor is authorized to reduce the Utility Deposit by the amount held on account of such terminated Utility Company upon seven (7) days' notice of such reduction and having not received a response thereto by such deadline.

11. The relief granted herein is applicable to all Utility Companies who have received notice of this Order that provide Utility Services to the Debtor.

12. This Final Order is without prejudice to any party's rights to contest any amount owed to a Utility Company. Nothing in this Final Order or the Motion shall be deemed to constitute postpetition assumption of any agreement under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

13. Nothing contained in the Motion, the Interim Order, or this Final Order, nor any payment made pursuant to the authority granted by the Interim Order or this Final Order, is intended to be or shall be construed as: (a) an admission as to the validity of any claim against the Debtor; (b) a waiver of the Debtor's or any appropriate party in interest's rights to dispute the amount of, basis for, or validity of any claim against the Debtor; (c) a waiver of any claims or causes of action that may exist against any creditor or interest holder; or (d) an approval, assumption, adoption, or rejection of any agreement, contract, lease, program, or policy between the Debtor and any third party under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

14. Under the circumstances of the Chapter 11 Case, notice of the Motion is adequate under Bankruptcy Rule 6004(a) and the Local Rules.

15. Notwithstanding Bankruptcy Rule 6004(h), this Final Order shall be immediately effective and enforceable upon its entry.

16. This Court retains jurisdiction to enforce and implement the terms and provisions of this Final Order and the Adequate Assurance Procedures and retains jurisdiction over any disputes with respect thereto.

17. The Debtor is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the relief granted in this Final Order in accordance with the Motion.

Exhibit B

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

In re:

GRITSTONE BIO, INC.,¹

Debtor.

Chapter 11

Case No. 24-12305 (KBO)

Related Docket Nos. [9](#) [9](#) & [39](#)

FINAL INTERIM ORDER (I) APPROVING PROPOSED FORM OF ADEQUATE ASSURANCE OF PAYMENT TO UTILITY COMPANIES; (II) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING OBJECTIONS BY UTILITY COMPANIES; (III) PROHIBITING UTILITY COMPANIES FROM ALTERING, REFUSING, OR DISCONTINUING SERVICE; AND (IV) GRANTING RELATED RELIEF

Upon consideration of the motion (the "Motion")² of the above-captioned debtor and debtor in possession (the "Debtor") for the entry of ~~an interim~~ final order (this "InterimFinal Order"), pursuant to sections 105(a) and 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, and Bankruptcy Rules 6003 and 6004: (i) approving the Debtor's proposed form of adequate assurance of payment to the Utility Companies; (ii) establishing procedures for resolving objections by Utility Companies relating to the adequacy of the proposed adequate assurance provided by the Debtor; (iii) prohibiting the Utility Companies from altering, refusing, or discontinuing service to, or discriminating against, the Debtor on the basis of the commencement of the Chapter 11 Case or any outstanding prepetition debts; and (iv) granting related relief, all as more fully set forth in the Motion; and upon consideration of the First Day Declaration; and ~~upon the Debtor's representation that any form of adequate assurance of payment to the Utility Companies is consistent with the Debtor's budget; and~~ this Court having jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and 1334 and the *Amended Standing Order of Reference from the United States District Court for*

¹ The Debtor's mailing address is 4698 Willow Road, Pleasanton, CA 94588, and the last four digits of the Debtor's federal tax identification number is 9534.

² A capitalized term used but not defined herein have the meaning ascribed to it in the Motion.

the District of Delaware, dated February 29, 2012; and this Court having found that this is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2), and this Court having found that venue of this proceeding and the Motion in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409; and this Court having found that the Debtor's notice of the Motion and opportunity for a hearing on the Motion were appropriate under the circumstances and no other notice need be provided; and this Court having reviewed the Motion and having heard the statements in support of the relief requested therein at an interim hearing before this Court (the "Hearing"); and this Court having determined that the legal and factual bases set forth in the Motion and at the Hearing establish just cause for the relief granted herein; and upon all of the proceedings had before this Court; and after due deliberation and sufficient cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The Motion is GRANTED on ~~an interim~~ a final basis as set forth herein.
2. ~~2. The final hearing (the "Final Hearing") on the Motion shall be held on November 13, 2024 at 1:00 p.m. (Eastern Time). Any objections or responses to entry of a final order on the Motion shall be filed with the Court and served so as to be received by the Notice Parties (as defined herein) on or before November 6, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time). In the event that no objections to entry of a final order on the Motion are timely received, this Court may enter such final order without need for the Final Hearing.~~
3. ~~3.~~ All objections to the Motion or the relief requested therein that have not been withdrawn, waived, or settled, and all reservations of rights included therein, ~~are~~ hereby are overruled on the merits.
4. Subject to compliance with the procedures set forth in the Motion and this Interim ~~Final~~ Order, the Proposed Adequate Assurance shall constitute adequate assurance of

future payment as required by section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code for all utility providers that have received notice and for whose benefit Adequate Assurance Deposits are being made.

5. Subject to compliance with the procedures set forth in the Motion and this Final Order, all utility providers that have received notice, and for whose benefit Adequate Assurance Deposits are being made, are prohibited from altering, refusing, or discontinuing Utility Services, or otherwise discriminating against the Debtor, on account of any unpaid prepetition charges or any perceived inadequacy of the Debtor's Proposed Adequate Assurance, and all such utility providers are deemed to have received adequate assurance of payment in accordance with section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code.

6. The following Adequate Assurance Procedures are hereby approved:

- a. The Debtor will serve a copy of ~~this Motion and the Interim~~the Final Order on the Utility Companies on the Utility Services List within ~~two~~three (23) calendar days after entry of the ~~Interim~~Final Order.
- b. ~~Subject to entry of the Interim Order,~~ The Debtor will deposit the Utility Deposit, in the aggregate amount of \$~~237~~237,375.00, in the Utility Deposit Account within twenty (20) calendar days after the Petition Date.
- c. The portion of the Utility Deposit attributable to each Utility Company will be returned to the Debtor on the earlier of: (i) reconciliation and payment by the Debtor of the Utility Company's final invoice in accordance with applicable non-bankruptcy law following the Debtor's termination of Utility Services from such Utility Company; and (ii) the earlier of: (a) the effective date of any chapter 11 plan confirmed in the Chapter 11 Case; and (b) the closure of the Chapter 11 Case; provided that there are no outstanding disputes related to postpetition payments due to the affected Utility Companies.
- d. Any Utility Company desiring additional assurances of payment in the form of deposits, prepayments, or otherwise must serve a request for additional assurance (an "Additional Assurance Request") on the following parties: (i) proposed counsel to the Debtor, Pachulski Stang Ziehl & Jones LLP, 919 North Market Street 17th Floor, P.O. Box 8705, Wilmington, DE 19899-8705 (Courier 19801), Attn: -John W. Lucas (jlucas@pszjlaw.com), James E. O'Neill (joneill@pszjlaw.com), and Brooke E. Wilson (bwilson@pszjlaw.com); (ii) the Office of The United States Trustee, 844 King Street Suite 2207, Lockbox 35, Wilmington, DE 19801; (iii) counsel

to the Prepetition Secured Lenders; and (iv) the proposed counsel for any the eOfficial eCommittee of uUnsecured eCreditors appointed in the Chapter 11 Case(the “Creditors’ Committee”) (a) ArentFox Schiff LLP, 1301 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 42, New York, New York 10019, Attn.: Andrew I. Silfen, Beth M. Brownstein, James E. Britton, and Patrick Feeney; (b) Potter Anderson & Corroon LLP, 1313 N. Market Street, 6th Floor, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, Attn.: Christopher M. Samis, Aaron H. Stulman, Katelin A. Morales and Ethan H. Sulik.

- e. The Additional Assurance Request must: (i) be made in writing; (ii) set forth the location(s) for which Utility Services are provided, the account number(s) for those location(s), and the outstanding balance for each account; (iii) explain why the Utility Company believes the Utility Deposit is not adequate assurance of payment; and (iv) certify that the Utility Company does not already hold a deposit equal to or greater than two weeks of Utility Services provided by such Utility Company.
- f. An Additional Assurance Request may be made at any time. If a Utility Company does not serve an Additional Assurance Request, the Utility Company will be forbidden from discontinuing, altering, or refusing Utility Services to, or discriminating against, the Debtor on account of any unpaid prepetition charges or requiring additional assurance of payment other than the Proposed Adequate Assurance.
- g. Upon the Debtor’s receipt of an Additional Assurance Request, the Debtor will negotiate with the Utility Company to resolve the Utility Company’s Additional Assurance Request in consultation with the Committee.
- h. The Debtor may, without further order of the Court but in consultation with the Committee, resolve any Additional Assurance Request by mutual agreement with a Utility Company and, the Debtor may, in connection with any such agreement, provide a Utility Company with additional adequate assurance of payment, including cash deposits, prepayments, and other forms of security if the Debtor believes such additional assurance is reasonable.
- i. If the Debtor and the Utility Company are not able to reach an alternative resolution within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the Additional Assurance Request, the Debtor will request a hearing before the Court at the next regularly scheduled omnibus hearing to determine the adequacy of assurance of payment with respect to the particular Utility Company (the “Determination Hearing”) pursuant to section 366(c)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code, unless the Debtor and the Utility Company agree in writing to extend the period.
- j. Pending resolution of the Additional Assurance Request and Determination Hearing, the Utility Company making the Additional Assurance Request

will be prohibited from altering, refusing, or discontinuing Utility Services to the Debtor on account of unpaid charges for prepetition services or on account of any objections to the Proposed Adequate Assurance.

- k. Notwithstanding anything ~~in these procedures~~ to the contrary herein, the Debtor ~~will request a hearing (the “Final~~ shall provide Pacific Gas and Electric Company (“PG&E”) with a deposit of \$26,000.00 to be held by PG&E as an Adequate Assurance Hearing”) ~~to take place no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the Petition Date to resolve outstanding objections to these procedures in the event any are timely filed.~~ Deposit.

7. All utility providers that have received notice, and for whose benefit Adequate Assurance Deposits are being made, are prohibited from requiring additional adequate assurance of payment other than pursuant to the Adequate Assurance Procedures.

~~8. 7. The Adequate Assurance Deposits shall be placed into a segregated account for the benefit of each Utility Company. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other Order of this Court, the interests of any party, including but not limited to the Debtor’s postpetition or prepetition lenders, in, or lien on, the Adequate Assurance Deposits shall be subordinate to the Utility Companies’ interest in any Adequate Assurance Deposit until such time as the Adequate Assurance Deposit is returned to the Debtor or as otherwise ordered by the Court.~~

9. ~~8.~~ The inclusion of any entity in, as well as any omission of any entity from, the Utility Services List shall not be deemed an admission by the Debtor that such entity is, or is not, a utility within the meaning of section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, and the Debtor reserves all rights and defenses with respect thereto.

10. ~~9.~~ The Debtor is authorized to amend the Utility Services List to the extent the Debtor terminates the services of any Utility Company or identifies additional Utility Companies, ~~and this Interim~~ provided, however, that the Debtor shall provide notice of any such addition or removal to the Creditors’ Committee. This Final Order shall apply to any Utility Company that is added to the Utility Services List upon such Utility Company being added to the

Utility Services List and being served with this ~~Interim~~Final Order. The Debtor shall serve a copy of this ~~Interim~~Final Order upon any Utility Company added to the Utility Services List ~~prior to the entry of a final order.~~

11. ~~10.~~ The Debtor shall increase the amount of the Utility Deposit if an additional Utility Company is added to the Utility Services List by an amount equal to two (2) ~~weeks~~ of Utility Services provided by such additional Utility Company, calculated using the historical average for such payments during the twelve (12) months prior to the Petition Date; provided, however, that the Debtor shall give notice to the Committee of such increase.

12. ~~11.~~ The Debtor may terminate the services of any Utility Company and amend the Utility Services List to reflect such termination. The Debtor is authorized to reduce the Utility Deposit by the amount held on account of such terminated Utility Company upon seven (7) ~~calendar~~ days' notice of such reduction and having not received a response thereto by such deadline.

13. ~~12.~~ The relief granted herein is applicable to all Utility Companies who have received notice of this Order that provide Utility Services to the Debtor.

14. ~~13.~~ This ~~Interim~~Final Order is without prejudice to any party's rights to contest any amount owed to a Utility Company. Nothing in this ~~Interim~~Final Order or the Motion shall be deemed to constitute postpetition assumption of any agreement under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

15. ~~14.~~ Nothing contained in the Motion ~~or this, the~~ Interim Order, or this Final Order, nor any payment made pursuant to the authority granted by ~~this~~the Interim Order or this Final Order, is intended to be or shall be construed as: (a) an admission as to the validity of any claim against the Debtor; (b) a waiver of the Debtor's or any appropriate party in interest's rights

to dispute the amount of, basis for, or validity of any claim against the Debtor; (c) a waiver of any claims or causes of action that may exist against any creditor or interest holder; or (d) an approval, assumption, adoption, or rejection of any agreement, contract, lease, program, or policy between the Debtor and any third party under section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code.

16. ~~15. The requirements of Bankruptcy Rule 6003(b) have been satisfied.~~

17. ~~16.~~ Under the circumstances of the Chapter 11 Case, notice of the Motion is adequate under Bankruptcy Rule 6004(a) and the Local Rules.

18. ~~17.~~ Notwithstanding Bankruptcy Rule 6004(h), this ~~Interim~~Final Order shall be immediately effective and enforceable upon its entry.

19. ~~18.~~ This Court retains jurisdiction to enforce and implement the terms and provisions of this ~~Interim~~Final Order and the Adequate Assurance Procedures and retains jurisdiction over any disputes with respect thereto.

20. ~~19.~~ The Debtor is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the relief granted in this ~~Interim~~Final Order in accordance with the Motion.